A VISIT TO PAZIPORA

A JKCCS team, this month, visited north Kashmir primarily to meet the survivors of Pazipora, Balipora Konun massacre, happened just before Kunan Poshpora mass rape, occurred on August 10, 1990. On the fateful day, militants attacked an army convoy of 4 Grenadier Army. The convoy was led by Commanding Officer, P.K. Shaw   with the companies from Trehgam, Vilgam and Dragona camps. To avenge the attack, army after laying cordon, killed 27 civilians and raped 12 to 15 women besides setting on fire numerous residential houses at Dardpora and Boni Mohalla. Out of the raped women, later, three succumb to injuries they received during rape on them by the soldiers.  

The incident was widely reported in media, locally and internationally, and triggered widespread condemnations. Human rights groups came up with reports highlighting the incident. Like hundreds of human rights violation incidents this incident also went    

While interacting with the survivors, most of whom were busy in rice plantation, the team was told that an FIR No. 38/1990 was filed at Vilgam police station about the incident. The FIR, the locals said, read “that the army vehicles were attacked by the terrorist causing injury to the army personnel and under 3/4 TADA CRPC and 3/7 RPC the case has been filed”, however, nobody had any clue about the outcome of the investigation. 

The survivors further informed that a local doctor meticulously collected all the relevant and important information about the incident, however, after his death nobody came forward followed the case. By and large, there was a common complaint of survivors that Pazipora Massacre and Rapes incident went out of focus immediately; however, Kunan Poshpora mass rape case got overwhelming attention. They reiterate that in their case besides rapes, 27 persons were killed and numerous houses were burnt down. For them Pazipora Case is forgotten and almost erased from people’s memory.  

The primary objective of the visit was to persuade the survivors to follow the example of Kunan Poshpora, which is just only few kilometers from their village. They were made to understand the importance of the survivors’ involvement in the human rights violations cases. The idea of re-investigation and remembrance into the Pazipora incident in line with Kunan Pospora was also discussed with them   

In response to our visit, they promised to commit themselves to gather all the relevant documentation and also persuade the other survivors, not present there, and accordingly inform the JKCCS about their final decision. In Kunan Poshpora, survivors have shown lot of courage. They had constituted a committee and have; individually and collectively, initiated some efforts at least took the case before SHRC, however, in Pazipora nothing of that sort happened. JKCCS is not very optimistic about their efforts to re-open the case. Nevertheless, it was an effort made.

The team also visited a beautiful village called Didikot, where it visited the house of Mohammad Amin Shah, a lecturer at Degree College Kupwara. Amin’s four family members were brutally killed during intervening night of 14th / 15th day of 1999 by 50 personnel belonged to 24 RR Camp Goshi led by Ikhwanis namely, Sarwar Ganai, Mushtaq Sheikh and other Ikhwanis. The massacre was carried out under the supervision of Army Colonel Balli, who had frequently threatened the family especially Amin’s elder brother for being hospitable to the militants by providing them food and shelter to them. 

On the day of massacre, around 20 persons were present in Amin’s house including women and children. The army men and Ikhwanis forced their entry in the room of Mohammad Amin Shah and killed his wife Zareefa, daughter Snober and sister-in-law Sharifa. Sharifa had managed to remove mask from the faces of the Ikhwani’s, therefore identified him. 

In emotionally charged tone, the women (name withheld) present on that day narrated the incident and recollected that how the village being nearer to the forests was controlled by the militant. The police had filed the challan and the main perpetrator Colonel Balli under whose command the Ikhwani’s operated is not facing any trial instead two Ikhwani’s Serwar Ganiai and Mushtaq Sheikh have been awarded 14 years imprisonment. However, former was let off after one year imprisonment and is absconding. 

The most useful part of the visit was an interaction with a teacher Ghulam Mohammad Dar of Chilgund (15 km from Kupwara), who also happens to be chairman of an NGO, Human Care organization. Ghulam Mohammad shared vitals details about some of the functioning of the Ikhwanis in the area. Initially hesitant, the teacher gradually warms up and named one notorious Ikhwani Abdul Rashid Khan, once his neighbor, who was responsible for scores of killings. Slowly and gradually he shared Rashid’s entire biography and his modus operandi of murdering people particulatly the Jamaat activists. In fact he shared his entire biography. He said, Rashid, once a JKLF activist, a guide to help militants to cross over POK and had criminal background before 1989. After August 1995, the Ikhwanis established its headquarters in a middle school at Chalgund. These Ikhwanis were working with the liaison unit of the Military Intelligence at Zangal  and five person  “killer group” was formed which work closely with the 24 RR lead by Major Balli Goshi and scores of people were killed. The killings, most of whom were of JEI activists, were carried out in the Kupwara district by the army and Ikhwani group particularly in February 1996. Abdul Rasheed khan killed 8 persons, all affiliated with JEI and Hurriyat including a poet, Ali Mohammad  Shahbaz .Even some killings were done by Lal Din, an Ikhwani, who killed a lawyer Abdul Rashid Shah of Hatamulla. 

Killings were carried out in a planned manner. People who were affiliated with Jamaat, or Hurriyat or supporting covertly militancy were the prime targets of the Ikhwanis and army. Interestingly, the renegade is alive and currently works as a contractor. Some of his lieutenants have shifted to Srinagar. There is ample evidence that the renegade is involved in large scale killings in the area, and now is the time to collect the skeletons from his cupboard. It will be slightly difficult because of non-cooperation from the people due to fear. 

TWO PERSONS KILLED IN ATTACKS ON MOBILE INFRASTRUCTURE 
PRO-FREEDOM CAMP BLAMES INDIAN AGENCIES FOR THE ATTACKS

May 26: In two separate attacks on the cell phone infrastructure, two civilians including an employee with mobile outlet were killed in Sopore area of Baramulla districts. A little-known armed group introduces itself as “Lasker-e-Islam” claimed responsibilities of the twin attacks. The pro-freedom camp blamed Indian sponsored agencies for carrying out the attacks to defame the Kashmir resistance movement.   

 
On May 25, gunmen assailed a cell phone outlet of BSNL in Sopore killing its employee, a young man Rafiq Akbar Hanji, 23, a resident of Handwara of district Kupwara and injured two others. The attack invited large-scale commendations, first from the Jammu Kashmir Coalition of Civil Society (JKCCS) and Hurriyat Conference led by Ali Shah Geelani.   

Rafiq was seriously injured when the unknown persons attacked the BSNL showroom at Sopore with their automatic weapons. In the attack three persons were injured including Ghulam Mohammad Bhat son of Abdul Majid Bhat and Imtiyaz Ahmad Lone son of Abdul Rashid Lone, both residents of the town. In critical conditions Rafiq was shifted to SKIMS at Soura, Srinagar when he breathed his last. 

Rafiq had recently completed his bachelor’s degree in commerce from Degree College Handwara. Rafiq was working as a marketing executive for Sony mobiles, was at the BSNL outlet with two associates who were also injured in the firing.

Wasim Akbar, Rafiq’s elder brother, said, “Our father Mohammad Akbar Hanji is a labourer, but he provided us with what he could so that we could continue our education.” Rafiq, he said, was earning around Rs 4,000 rupees per month and was hoping to get a better job.

 
Wasim further said, “On Monday, I was going to sit in the B.Ed examination when a friend from Sopore called me to say that suspected militants had attacked a BSNL showroom in Sopore where my brother was working. Soon afterwards, I received a call from another person who said that Rafiq was among the three people who had been hit by bullets. I forgot about my exam and rushed to Sopore hospital, but doctors there informed me that the trio had been shifted to SKIMS. My family and I were on the way to Srinagar when someone else confirmed that Rafiq was no more. It is not easy for me to describe what we lost. Rafiq was very honest and a hard worker. No one can heal our wounds.”

Wasim also said that the attackers had only ‘warned’ three mobile companies, Airtel, Vodafone and Reliance to shut their business and BSNL was not in their list. “We fail to understand why they attacked him; however it was the responsibility of the government and police to provide security, but they failed.”

A day later, on May 26, in another attack unidentified gunmen stormed a house with a mobile tower installed in its premises at Dooru, Sopore, and killed its owner. 

Official sources said the gunmen barged into the house at around 9:25 pm on May 26 and fired indiscriminately at Ghulam Hassan Dar son of Abdul Ahad Dar.

 Dar, whose son, Tanveer Ahmad, is a Congress sarpanch, was shifted to hospital by the family members but doctors declared him dead on arrival.

Sources said that some unidentified gunmen had visited Dar three days ago, asking him to close down the Airtel tower in his house premises.

Dar was a former militant of Al-Jihad outfit who had surrendered in 1993.

 
The attacks come in the backdrop of threatening posters, issued in the name of ‘Lashkar-e-Islam’, asking such owners and mobile franchises to wind up their businesses in the area.

 
The posters purportedly had asked cellphone services providers to wind up their operations. However, Hizb-ul-Mujahideen had announced through posters that there was no militant organisation by name of Lashkar-e-Islam.

 
Four days ago, grenades were thrown in the compound of Dr Mohammad Ramzan Sofi, where a cellphone tower is installed.

Following the attack, cellphone outlets including recharge counters and distributors of telecommunication companies operating in Sopore, Rafiabad, Zainageer, Baramulla, Pattan, Sangrama and other neighbouring areas have closed down their business.


The attacks provoked condemnations from different Kashmiri groups.  In a statement JKCCS unequivocally condemns the attack on the BSNL office in Sopore, in which one civilian died and two others are injured. JKCCS has consistently raised the issue of attacks on civilians by armed groups and the State actors, the statement read.
In the statement the JKCCS urged, “So far it is unclear who is behind this attack. In the last 25 years of insurgency and counter insurgency operations many civilians have been targeted. In almost all the attacks on civilians the police has failed to conduct credible investigations to hold the killers accountable. In the context of Indian policy of proliferation of terrorist groups in Kashmir for countering and defaming the Jammu and Kashmir movement, it has been always difficult to conclusively establish the culpable persons. In this context it becomes incumbent on United Jehad Council to also on their side establish who are the people behind this particular attack on non-combatants. If it is proved that the men responsible for today’s attacks are from the armed groups, then certainly UJC has the moral responsibility of holding the accused accountable.”
JKCCS takes this opportunity to once again remind both the State and non-state actors of their responsibility under international law to not make non-combatants target of their operations either directly or indirectly. There is also no scope for collateral killings of civilians for any side, the JKCCS statement concludes.


Hurriyat (G) chairman, Ali Shah Geelani while condemning the attacks accused the Indian secret agencies for carrying the attack. The aged leader urged the United Jihad Council (UJC), an amalgamation of militant outfits, to investigate from its end into the attacks, as such attacks are carried out to defame and malign the resistance movement of J&K.  

RASHID BILLA. THE MAN BEHIND SADRAKOOT MASSACRE, THREATEN SURVIVORS
May 28: Survivors of Sadderkoot Massacre October 5-1996 approached the office of Public Commission on Human Rights (PCHR), through which they have filed a writ petition against the perpetrators of massacre, with multiple complaints of threats and intimidation delivered to them by the perpetrators to pressure them to withdraw the case from J&K High Court.  An FIR 125/96 stands registered against the perpetrators of massacre with Police Station Sumbal. To protest the intimidations, a press statement highlighting the threats, was circulated to the media in order to mount pressure on the Ikhwan commander Rashid Billa, the main perpetrator, to put an end to the harassments to the survivors. 

It appears that the recent statement made by the Indian Defence Minister Manohar Parrikar “terrorists have to be neutralized only through terrorists,” on May 22 during his Kashmir visit has already emboldened the Ikhwanis – who presently have been absorbed in the pro-India political parties, Territorial Army and Jammu and Kashmir Police. This statement is an admission on part of the Indian government, which overtly and covertly through Ikhwan, VDCs etc. unleashed a war on the people of Jammu and Kashmir, which resulted in numerous crimes.

While talking to The Informative Missive Ghulam Qadir stated, “We are facing persistence life threats from Rashid Billa from the day we have filed a writ petition before the J&K High Court against the massacre. We are being threatened time and again to withdraw the case from the court else we would be killed the way our relatives were massacred. The frequency of the threats scaled up after the Indian Defence Minister made a statement encouraging those renegades during his Kashmir visit”.

After the respondents in the massacre case including Rashid Billa got notices from the court Billa and his men intensified the intimidations. “The regular threats are really disturbing. But we are adamant not to withdraw the case come what may. However, at the same time we want an immediate end to such intimidations which had disturbed us all. We are mindful of the fact that those renegades, even now, are quite capable of carrying any nasty incident even killings, as it is nothing new to them,” the disturbed survivors of the massacre Ghulam Qadir averred.    
While quoting Rashid Billa’s recent threat Ghulam Qadir, whose four family members were killed, stated, “In a recently delivered threat, Rashid Billa intimidated the petitioners of serious consequences. He directly threatened Manzoor Ahmed Dar, one of the petitioners, of dire consequences unless the families retract their allegations against him. Rashid Billa claimed that he would be once again made Ikhwan commander on 3rd June 2015.”
On May 27, the Jammu and Kashmir High Court directed the Director General of Police and the Senior Superintendent of Police of Bandipora to protect the life and liberty of the petitioners. The next hearing of the case has been scheduled on 6th July 2015.

MAN TORTURED, JAILED FOR YEARS, KILLED BY UNKNOWN GUNMEN IN 2007
After facing frequent torture at the hands of STF and Ikhwanis and years of incarceration under PSA, Showket Ahmad was killed in 2007 by unknown gunmen.  However, Showkat’s family firmly believes that he was killed by state backed agencies. The family claimed the state sponsored Ikhwanis were only after him for his political ideology.    

The Informative Missive talked to Showkat’s brother Nisar Ahmad who talked in detail about the tribulations of his slain brother.  
While narrating the ordeal Nisar said, “On 15 August 1997, unknown persons hurled a grenade on the house of Idrees Baba, a notorious Ikhwani. However, the explosion couldn’t cause any harm to Idrees.  Two days later, on August 17, 1997, Ikhwanis along with CRPF and army cordoned off our house. They asked me, when I opened the door, to call Showkat out. Once Showkat came out of his room he was forcibly taken away by the raiding party. The Ikhwan party was led by Tahir Fuf, another notorious Ikhwani, who threatened that we will get him back only dead in half-an-hour.”  

The other Ikhwanis who were part of the raid were identified by Nasir as Sameer Ahmad Bhat alias Babul darzi S/o Abdul Majeed Bhat R/o Danger Pora,  Nana Malpori R/o Malpora,  Setha Gujar(dead) R/o: General Bus Stand, Islamabad. Liyaqat R/o: Khanabal, Abbas Bangali, Junaid Dantar both R/o Dantar, Khanabal, Roop Changa R/o: Cheeni Chowk, Islamabad. It was not difficult for Showkat’s family to identify these Ikhwanis as they all hail from the same district.  

The Ikhawnis were leading the raid while the CRPF and army only cordoned off Showkat’s house. Tahir Fuf, Nana Malpori and Liyaqat were the top line commanders of this Ikhwani group.

The raid was conducted in the backdrop of grenade attack on Idrees’s house. It was him who blindly blamed Showkat for carrying the attack. It was on his (Idrees’s) instructions the raid was conducted. Showket was taken to Ikhwan headquarters at Shaksaz Mohalla, Kaadipora, Islamabad. 

Nisar Ahmad Bhat said, “In Ikhwan headquarter he was tortured.  He was only 17 then.  Next day, on 18th August, I along with my father and one Rehman Khar, having friendly terms with Idrees, went to his shop. He requested Idrees not to kill Showket. At the shop when my father requested Idrees not to harm Showkat, he was slapped by him.  To which I reacted back with a slap on Idrees’s face and told him if he kills my brother, I will eliminate him and his associates. My reaction mollifies Idrees’s attitude who ensured that my brother will be spared but be punished for hurling grenade.”

After few days Showket was shifted to JIC/STF camp Khanabal, where ASP Operation Ramesh Kumar Jala, according to Showkat’s family, tortured him himself.  Showkat’s relatives also visited the STF camp and requested R.K Jala to release Showket.  

“When we plead Showkat’s non-guilt before Ramesh Kumar Jala, he asked us he will set him free only when he will receive the bail orders. When we managed the bail from the court and produced the same before Jala. He waste no time to torn the bail order apart. And without any legal justification my brother was kept in the STF camp for six months,” Nasir stated.    

Subsequently, after six months, Showkat was booked under PSA and was taken to Kathua District Jail where he was kept for six months.  Then from Kathua he was brought to Rangreth Camp for six months and then to central jail Srinagar.  After two year imprisonment he was released. 

Nasir further stated, “His two year detention badly disturbed his educational career. However, he managed to clear his matriculation examination from Khanabal JIC/STF camp. Having deep interest in education, he never allows the situation to destroy his educational urge. After his release he cleared his 12th class examination with good percentage.” 

Showkat has deep inclination towards pro-freedom activities. He was associated with Tahreek-e-Hurriyat led by Ali Shah Geelani with which he was working as library in-charge at its office at K.P road Islamabad.

Nasir stated, “In 2004, when Safdar Ali Beigh, a minister of National Conference was killed. Many boys were picked up from our area including my brother. Again without any reason and rhyme, he was booked under PSA and was imprisoned for one and half-year at Kote Bhalwal jail Jammu. In 2006, he was released when government announced release of youths against whom there were no serious charges.” 

Nasir further related, “In 2006, my brother was appointed as teacher in a private school at Wanpoo. After few days a grenade was exploded at Cheeni Chowk. On the same night at about 11pm-12am Ikhwani and STF came to our house and picked up Showket again and took him to STF camp Khanabal.  This time it was Tahir Fuf, STF officer Ramesh and Dy.SP Operation Harmeet Singh who took him into custody. He was released after 8-10 days of questioning and beating.” 

On 5th August 2007, when Showket was going towards Leazbal area, he was intercepted and kidnapped by unknown gunmen. 

Nasir stated, “While on his way to Leazbal area he was intercepted and abducted by unknown gunmen dressed in civvies. The gunmen pushed him into a maroon Sumo vehicle and ran away. The locals who witnessed his abduction told me about the method of his abduction. Barely, half an hour of his abduction his dead body was found at Barakpora.  His body was spotted by two farmers, who were working in fields that time, informed the family that they witnessed a boy being brought by some persons dressed in khaki and shot him dead”.
The methods and the witnesses strengthened the doubt of the family that Showkat was killed by the state sponsored forces. 
 “We have enough credible witness accounts to base our belief on that my brother was killed by state backed forces. There was no one except state agencies who can murder him. I reiterate he was killed by the state agencies for him being a pro-freedom supporter,” Nasir concludes
WOODCUTTER DISAPPEARS IN JUNGLE
May 20: 16-years-ago, on July 26, 1999, there was firing by army in the Wanodorsa forests of Lolab area of Kupwara district. On the same day, in the morning, Gulab Ahmad Magray, 40, had gone to the same forests to collect the firewood. Since then the firing and whereabouts of Gulab are mystery. However, there is strong inkling of Gulab’s family that the firing and disappearance are concomitant. 

The other villagers who had gone to the same forests for the same purpose had seen Gulab going into the forests. Except him, all returned safely to their homes.  

According to Sara Begum, sister-in-law of Gulab, while talking to The Informative Missive, “On 26 July 1999, at 9:00 am Gulab went to the Wanodorsa forests to collect the woods, but didn’t return since then.  Villagers, normally, went to the forest and return with the firewood after few hours.”

On July 26, there was firing in the jungle, which everybody took as an encounter between troopers and militants. However, nothing was known about the outcome of the encounter. To Gulab’s family it was a mysterious firing, somehow, has connections with the disappearance of Gulab.  

“On that day around 2:00 pm there was firing in the jungle, which continued for half-an-hour. Everybody took it as an encounter between forces and militants. However, no causality was reported. The villagers who like Gulab had gone for firewood returned safely but not him,” Sara said.    

The villagers who had gone to the forests that day told Gulab’s family that they saw him going into the jungle but none saw him returning. Sara, whose husband Mohammad Maqsood, now dead, toiled tirelessly to ascertain the whereabouts of his younger brother but could not succeed till he died of severe illness. “My husband continuously searched his brother and made every effort to establish his whereabouts, however, success never came his way. He filed a missing report in the concerned police station and also went to Chandigam army camp to find his brother,” Sara averred.

  
Sara’s husband moved an application to the DC office Kupwara, which is still pending there. “My husband moved an application to the Deputy Commissioner’s office Kupwara but could not get even a clue about his disappeared brother. There was not much of an effort from the administrative office to press for his whereabouts. Neither pressure was build on the state agencies nor ex gratia was sanctioned,” Sara complained. 

BOYS WENT OUT NEVER SEEN AGAIN 
On the evening of November 11, 1995, two classmates, Mohammad Rustum Lone s/o Mukhta Lone r/o Natnusa Kandi Kupwara and his friend Tanveer Gania s/o Assad Gania disappeared. Both have left their homes with the word that they will return back shortly. However, that did not happen. None of them were seen again. 

Mystery has obscured whereabouts of both the boys. Nobody knows in which circumstances the duo disappeared. Parents of Tanveer had filed a case with police and even received ex gratia relief, however, Rustum’s has not even informed the police. 

Illiteracy coupled with poverty was the main bottleneck in initiating any search for the disappeared Rustum. 
While talking to The Informative Missive Mohammad Maqbool Lone, victim’s brother said, “Rustum left the home on the evening of November 11, 1995 after returning from offering Magrib (pre-dusk) prayers in local Masjid. The delay in his return perturbed us. But we could not go out to verify the delay. It was the hostile situation in the area which prevented us from venturing out to his search”.   

Next day, when Maqbool Lone were enquiring in his locality about his brother he learnt about the disappearance of his brother’s friend Tanveer. “When I was enquiring from my neighbours about my brother’s whereabouts I came to know about Tanveer’s disappearance.  His family was also looking for him. Then I returned back hoping my brother will return of his own. However that did not happen,” Maqbool said. 

The situation in the area was quite hostile and Maqbool Lone failed to muster the courage to report his brother’s disappearance to the police. “The hostile atmosphere created in the area by army and militants prevented me to inform the police. My illiteracy and poverty never allows me to initiate a search for my brother,” Maqbool stated. 

Maqbool rules out that his brother has any inclination towards the militancy. He said, “He was quite a young boy had no inclination towards militants. If anybody tells me he has joined militancy I am not going to accept that. I know my brother well.” 

On the contrast, Tanveer’s family filed a report with concerned police station and had also received ex gratia relief into the case. “Tanveer’s family is well-off and having educated people that is why they know how to take up the case. In my brother’s matter, recently, I filed an application before the deputy commissioner’s Kupwara. I hope that something will happen,” Maqbool hopes.  

J&K GOVT. MUST STOP USING PELLET GUNS: AMNESTY

May 29: Jammu and Kashmir authorities must prohibit the use of pellet-firing shotguns while tackling demonstrations as they are inherently inaccurate and indiscriminate, Amnesty International India said. Police in the state have used pellet shotguns for a number of years. Several cases have been reported of people suffering serious injuries, particularly eye injuries, as a result.

“The police have a duty to protect lives and safety and prevent violent crime. However in carrying out this duty they must as far as possible use non-violent means,” said Shemeer Babu, Programme Director at Amnesty International India. “Because of a high potential to cause unwarranted injury, including bystanders and others, pellet guns should have no place in law enforcement.”

Javaid Gillani, IG, J&K Police, told Amnesty International India that the state police are instructed to use pellet guns only when protests go out of control. “There is a standard operating procedure that is followed in such situations, and police fire the pellet guns from a safe distance,” he said.

 However he acknowledged that the pellets, when fired, do not have a predictable trajectory.
PROBE INTO TUFAIL’S KILLING: CRIME BRANCH CLOSES FILE
TELLS COURT IT COULDN’T FIND FACTS TO CONVINCINGLY SAY HOW THE BOY DIED AND WHO WAS RESPONSIBLE
May 06: Nearly five years ago, 17-year-old Tufail Mattoo’s killing in alleged police action unleashed massive and unprecedented street intifada in Kashmir. But on Wednesday, the Special Investigation Team (SIT) of Crime branch, constituted last year on the directions by J&K High Court to probe his killing, has concluded what its counterpart in executive police did in March 2013: close the case as untraced.

 “No facts were accosted with where from it could be convincingly gathered with exactitude, how the death of the deceased took place and who was culpably responsible for it,” Aftab Ahmad, senior officer of the CB who headed the SIT, says in the report submitted before the Srinagar chief judicial magistrate VS Bhou who issued notice to Tufail’s family through his uncle to file a response on June 3 before rejecting or accepting the closure report.

“The investigation conducted by CBK further to the one conducted by SIT lead to the same conclusion as was arrived at by the SIT (of police).”

 
The report, however, does not withstand the observations by the high court that police investigation was incomplete on many vital aspects and “it appears as if an attempt has been made to save certain police officials.”

 
To justify its claims, the CB has submitted that there were three varied accounts of the eyewitnesses, official witnesses of police and expert opinion in the case.

 
“If they are taken in unison, it throws up a situation where there can be no conclusive culmination of investigation which would appear commensurate with the merits of the case,” the CB says.

 
Tufail was returning home from tuition on June 11, 2010 when a teargas shell fired allegedly by the police hit him on the head near Gani Memorial Stadium in Rajouri Kadal area of old city, killing him on the spot.

 
More than 120 protesters and bystanders were killed in police and paramilitary CRPF action in the six-month –long uprising triggered by his killing.

 
“The fact that a young life got lost with mystery shrouding the circumstances in which the unfortunate death took place, where eyewitness blame that some unidentifiable policemen were responsible for his death while on the other hand the police and official witnesses present in the area during the law and order duty appear oblivious of what exactly were the circumstances under which the incident took place,” the CB said. 
 
The expert opinion by Central Forensic Science Laboratory (CFSL) Chandigarh, it said, shows the absence of gunshot residues (GSR) in the swabs collected from the Tufail’s wound. The eyewitness, it said, identified a wrong person during the Test Identification Parade.

 
“It made the whole investigative process susceptible to inconsistencies as otherwise while bringing home guilt against any accused person or persons, the investigative findings have to meet the test of reasonableness without ambiguity and beyond any shadow of doubt,” the CB said and concluded the investigation of the case as “untraced.”

 “While the open investigation is closed for obvious reasons, this also remains a fact that efforts are being kept alive through secret investigation, to look for possible clues in future so that in the event of any substantial clue coming to the fore, the investigation of the case is re-opened and proceeded further on merits.”

 
The investigation of the case was handed over to the CB by the High Court on 14 February last year while quashing an order by Special Mobile Magistrate (PT&E) Srinagar on March 1, 2013, which had accepted the police SIT’s closure report.

 
“When an offence has been committed, it is the duty of the state to investigate the case fairly and expeditiously and ensure that the culprits are brought to justice. It has been stated more than once that until such time justice is meted out to the aggrieved persons, there will be no peace in the society,” the high court had observed in the judgment. The CB started the investigation in April last year.
PALHALLAN KILLING: GOVT RETURNS INQUIRY REPORT

May 09: The State Government has returned the inquiry report into the killing of a Palhallan youth to Deputy Commissioner Baramulla, asking him to come up with his recommendations.

 
Farooq Ahmad Butt alias Prince (23) son of Ghulam Ahmad of Baghat Mohalla Palhallan, Baramulla, was killed while another youth Riyaz Ahmad Bhat was injured when police and Central Reserve Police Force personnel opened fire on protesters in Palhallan on February 9 this year.

 
The residents of the area were staging protests against nocturnal raids by police in their localities.

 
They were also demanding the mortal remains of Muhammad Afzal Guru, who was hanged to death on same day in 2013.

 
Police termed the killing regrettable and Government ordered Magisterial Inquiry into the incident. The Government promised completion of inquiry in 15 days and said the guilty will be punished. Sub-Divisional Magistrate Pattan was assigned the job of inquiry.

 
The inquiry officer in the findings has said that the youth was totally innocent and there has been gross violation of Standard Operating Procedure while tackling the protest demonstrations. “The forces have not used water cannons to disperse the protesters neither warning shots were fired,” the report has said.

 
“About 30 persons who recorded their statements before the inquiry officer have said that forces entered the interior Palhallan and chased groups of youth,” the report has said, adding that no magistrate was present at the spot at the time of the firing.

 
The report was submitted to Divisional Commissioner Kashmir by Deputy Commissioner Baramulla. Divisional Commissioner was supposed to submit it to Government.

 
“I forwarded that report to Divisional Commissioner. He has returned it. He has asked me to write the comments after studying it. I have been asked to give recommendations," Deputy Commissioner Baramulla Mushtaq Ahmad told media. “I am giving my comments in near future. I will send it back to Divisional Commissioner.”

 
The victim’s family has not been given the copy of inquiry report till now. “We came to know that inquiry has been completed more than a month ago. Despite our repeated requests, the report has not been given to us,” family members of Farooq told media.

2010 KILLINGS: VICTIM FAMILIES TAKE TO ROADS DEMANDING JUSTICE
WE HAVE LOST RECORDS IN SEP FLOODS: ML KOUL 

May12: The families of the victims of 2010 killings by state forces from different districts of Kashmir collectively staged a protest to press for justice.
Meanwhile, Justice (retd) M L Koul, who heads one-man judicial commission probing the killing of over 120 civilians said that all the statements recorded and the petitions it had received were washed away in last year’s flood. However, government took strong note of the delay in carrying out inquiry into 2010 killings and has asked Justice Koul to complete the report by the end of this month or wind up the probe.

The families, including women and children, assembled at press enclave at Lal Chowk Srinagar and staged protest demonstrations against the government for allegedly failing to punish the killers of over 120 youth during 2010 summer agitation.

 
Farooq Ahmad Kuchay, whose brother Nisar Ahmed Kuchay was killed during a protest demonstration at Humhama Budgam, accused the government of shielding the guilty police and CRPF personnel who opened fire on unarmed protesters without any provocation on September 13, 2010.

 
“Besides three other persons my younger brother, a BA final year student, also fell to the bullets of security forces. They were protesting against the desecration of Holy Quran and were not part of any anti-India protest,” Kuchay said. He said the affected families are still craving for justice.
 
He accused the government of shielding the guilty. “We cannot expect justice from government as five years have already passed but not a single person has been identified and booked. The government-appointed Koul Commission is indulging in delaying tactics by overstretching the investigations,” he alleged.

 
The protesters said that at least four people including a woman were killed when police and paramilitary CRPF men opened indiscriminate firing on defenseless protesters in Humahama. They identified the people as Nisar Ahmad Kuchay, Adil Ahmad Teli, Gulam Rasool Tantray and Rafiqa Bano.

 
Hilal Ahmed Bangroo, a resident of Noorbagh Srinagar, said that his brother Rafiq Ahmed Bangroo was beaten to death by CRPF personnel. “There was no stone-pelting going anywhere at that day. My brother was on his way to home along with his cousins when CRPF men chased them. My two cousins managed to escape but Rafiq was caught and beaten to death,” he said.

 
Muhammad Maqbool Bhat, a resident of Tappar Pattan, said that his brother Ghulam Rasool Bhat (24) was shot dead by CRPF when he was lifting the body of another youth killed by the same personnel during a protest march.

 
The protesters appealed Chief Minister Mufti Muhammad Sayeed to impress upon the probe commission to expedite investigations so that the guilty are brought to book.

 
“It’s quite unfortunate that police even did not bother to lodge an FIR into most of the killings, what can one expect from this paralyzed system. We want the government to immediately identify the perpetrators,” said a protester.
The ML Koul Commission in its statement said that the Commission has lost records in the September 2014 floods. “The office of the Commission located in the ground floor at Civil Secretariat was hit by floods and we lost all the records. We are on the job and so far we have received some 62 petitions regarding the killing of over 120 youth in 2010 summer agitation,” Justice Koul said. 

 
He alleged that the families of the victims are interested in securing government jobs rather than punishing the guilty forces personnel. Koul claimed that except four families, all the families of the victims have received ex-gratia of Rs 5 lakhs each from the Government of India.

 
He however didn’t explain whether the families had lost the right to seek justice by accepting the ex-gratia or whether the money was given by the Government of India in lieu of justice.

 
“Most of the victims’ families demand government jobs and are not interested in punishing the guilty. They accuse Commission of buying time because the Commission can’t provide them government jobs. Each family has taken Rs five lakh each from the Government of India and we will recommend GoI to provide them more financial assistance,” he said.

 
Responding to a question, Koul said that it is difficult to blame a particular security agency for 2010 killings. “CRPF was not the only agency present in the field in 2010. There was local police, counter insurgency group SOG, Army and men from other agencies to control the situation. Blaming a particular agency for the killings is not fair. Most of the witnesses fail to raise a finger on a particular agency and they only maintain either police or CRPF men killed their relatives. It is very difficult to hold a particular security man responsible for the killing,” Koul said.
 
When asked Police in its FIR has categorically maintained that Rafeeqa Banoo wife of Abdul Gani Teeli of Ompora Budgam was put to death by target fire on 13 September 2010 by security men, Koul said that Commission agrees it was a target killing but the difficulty is that FIR does not mention the agency responsible for the killing. He said that in some cases the witnesses have mentioned the name of the agency and the Commission will direct them to appear before it in appropriate time.  


On May 17, The state government took a strong note of the delay in carrying out inquiry into the killing and has asked asked Justice (retd), M L Koul, who is probing the circumstances the caused the civilian deaths, to complete the report by the end of this month or wind up the probe.

“There has been delay on part of the Commission in completing the report and we have taken a strong note of this,’’ said a senior government official. 

Last year in June the government headed by Chief Minister, Omar Abdullah, through a cabinet order, approved setting up of Justice (Rtd) M L Koul Commission to enquire into the circumstances “leading to deaths by firing, or otherwise, in law and order situations in different districts of Kashmir Valley, during 2010.’’ 

The cabinet order read: “The Commission of Inquiry will also look into the adequacy or otherwise of the force used, fix responsibility, wherever excessive force has been used resulting in fatalities, where due care has not been taken in avoiding such fatalities and suggest measures to avoid the recurrence of such incidents in future and recommend the action to be taken against those found responsible in any such incidents.” 

“The commission shall submit its report to the government within a period of three months from the date of issuance of the notification in this regard,” read the cabinet order. 

ARMY CONDUCTS HOUSE TO HOUSE ‘SURVEY’ IN PULWAMA

COLLECTS PERSONAL DETAILS, MARKS RESIDENTIAL HOUSES

May 22: Army has started a major survey in Koil area of Pulwama district of south Kashmir, where personal details of families are being collected and houses marked with serial numbers, much to the inconvenience of local residents.

“Around 10 am on Tuesday, an army team led by an officer visited our locality and conducted a survey. They took our personal details, including number of family members, age and occupation besides mobile phone numbers. Before leaving, the soldiers also marked houses with serial numbers,” a resident of Dalan Mohalla, who did not want to be identified for fear of reprisals, told media.

The army, he said, conducted a survey of hundreds of houses in Dalan Mohalla, Padgam, Bongam, Wanpour, Taing, Sikhpora and other localities without providing any reasons for doing so. “And if any resident refuses to divulge the details, he is beaten up. This is sheer harassment,” he added.

Abdul Majeed, PDP’s sarpanch for Koil, confirmed the ongoing survey in the area. However, he said the army did not consult the Panchayat representatives before carrying out the exercise in several villages of the area.  “We were not taken into confidence by the army before the survey was started in the area,” he said.

The army, he said, was conducting the survey independently, without the assistance of police or officials of the district administration.

However, army’s Srinagar-based spokesman, Lt Col Brijesh Pandey downplayed the ongoing survey saying the soldiers might be collecting details from residents to execute welfare activities carried out across the Valley. “It might be that the unit is collecting details for the employment and empowerment projects that are regularly carried out by the army,” Pandey said.

Deputy Commissioner (DC) Pulwama, Dr Neeraj Kumar told media that he has no information about the house to house survey in the district. “I have no information about it. I will check it,” he said.

But this is not the first time that the army has been accused of harassment by locals on the pretext of carrying out surveys in the Valley. In January last year, the army issued a diktat in Rafiabad area of Baramulla asking the locals to make  fresh identity cards duly attested by Panchayat members.

Soldiers from the Shalkoot camp had also asked residents to erect boards outside their houses displaying the names of household members. The controversial diktat had caused deep resentment among locals even as the then-DC, Ghulam Ahmad Khwaja had lashed out at the army saying there was no martial law in place and that only the police or civil administration were authorised to take such decisions.

UNKNOWN GUNMEN KILL MAN

May 4: Unidentified gunmen shot dead a government employee in Hazratbal area of Srinagar, police said.

 
The killing, first such incident in Srinagar district this year, has come just a day before opening of Durbar Move offices in the summer capital.

 
Police identified the deceased as Abdul Ahad Dar (40) son of Abdul Gaffar Dar, resident of Astan Mohalla Gusu Hazratbal. Police said he was an employee in Mechanical Engineering Department and posted at JLNM Hospital Rainawari.

 
Family members of the deceased told media that two youth parked their Scooty at the road and entered their house at around 4.15 pm.

 
“His father was sitting on the veranda and the youth asked for Ahad,” the family members said. “They told Gaffar that they are colleagues of his son and wanted to meet him.”

 
Gaffer, the family said, called his son. “As the three reached near the gate, they shot Ahad in head from point blank range with a pistol.”

 
The family members said that they rushed Ahad to JLNM Hospital, however doctors referred him to SKIMS where he was declared brought dead.

SHOPIAN SHUTS TO COMMEMORATE 6TH ANNIVERSARY OF ASIYA, NEELOFAR

May 30: To commemorate 6th death anniversary of Asiya and Neelofar—the victims of 2009 Shopian double rape and murder case, a complete shutdown is being observed in this part of south Kashmir.

While shops and schools are closed down, traffic is off the roads to commemorate the incident—that saw valley literally plunging into unabated protests.

The Shopian rape and murder case surfaced after two sister-in-laws, Asiya (17) and Neelofar (22), went missing from their orchard on the way home on May 29, 2009. The next day morning, their bodies were found, both one kilometre apart, under mysterious circumstances.

The villagers alleged that both were raped and murdered by the security forces. A protest called up by a separatist leader turned violent and the administration declared a curfew-like situation lasting for over 47 days.

“Post-mortem conducted revealed no marks on the dead bodies including private parts,” claimed a police handout on May 30 that year. But a day after, the then J-K CM, Omar Abdullah appointed Justice (retired) Muzaffar Jan to carry out the probe and complete the inquiry in one month’s time. The move was apparently taken on face of mounting dissent across the state against the outrageous incident.

The then Superintendent of Police, Dr Haseeb Mughal, and The Chief Prosecuting Officer, Abdul Majid Dar, were to assist in the probe, headed by Justice Jan. The report would be subsequently tabled in the state assembly to make it public.

On June 1, 2009, the High Court Bar Association rejected the probe ordered by the government. The Bar demanded a sitting Judge of High Court or Chief Justice to carry out the probe instead of a retired Justice, Muzaffar Jan. During the same time, prominent separatist leader Syed Ali Shah Geelani demanded Amnesty International to probe the incident and also urged the High Court Bar Association to probe the matter at their own level so that “the people could know the truth”.

However, the Advocate General of Jammu and Kashmir, Muhammad Ishaq Qadri commented that the Commission of Inquiry headed by a sitting or a retired judge does not make any difference regarding the legality of its findings, which are recommendatory in nature in both the cases.

Unionist leader and then opposition leader, Mehbooba Mufti also rejected the government’s inquiry commission into the case in state assembly, and called upon the then prime minister, Dr Manmohan Singh, to review the performance of the state’s ruling coalition personally, as according to her, it had failed to extent of not registering an FIR of rape and murder in the case.

But as soon as the news about the incident spread in the Kashmir, spontaneous protests started. These protests were followed by the strike call by the separatist leaders.

Demands for justice, self-determination and removal of the Indian forces started. As soon as the protests started, police and Indian armed forces in order to halt the protests baton-charged the protesters and fired repeated tear gas canisters. Many separatist leaders were put under house arrest or jailed.

Following widespread protest across the state, JK police finally filed FIR of rape and murder on June 7, 2009.

After passing through twists and turns, finally a CBI investigation report into the case came up—that apparently proved a last nail in the coffin. It said: the duo died due to drowning in Rambi canal—much to the dismay of the family members of the victims, who still fail to understand: “How could our daughters ‘died due to drowning’ in an ankle-deep water body!”
NO SEPARATE COLONIES FOR KPS: CENTRE

May 05: In the wake of massive outcry over the issue, the Government of India said it has no plans to create separate townships for migrant Kashmiri Pandits in the Valley.

The Centre’s remarks come days after Union Home Minister Rajnath Singh claimed the Chief Minister Mufti Muhammad Sayeed assured to earmark 400 kanals of land in Kashmir for the purpose.

 
In reply to a relevant question in Lok Sabha on Tuesday, Minister of State for Home Affairs Haribhai Parathibhai Chaudhary said there was “no proposal to create separate zones exclusively for Kashmiri Pandits.”

 
The question put forward by nine MPs asked whether there is any proposal to create separate zones for Kashmiri pundits. “No proposal to create separate zones exclusively for the Kashmiri pandits in the state of Jammu and Kashmir is under consideration,” the Minister replied.

 
This puts to rest the controversy surrounding recent reports that government was planning to build composite townships for Kashmir pandits in the Valley.

 
The opposition National Conference in the state as well as separatists groups have opposed building of exclusively township for Kashmiri pandits.

 
However, the state government had said that the township will have mixed population of pandits, Muslims, Sikhs as well as Buddhists from Ladakh.

 
Replying to written questions about rehabilitation of Kashmiri pandits, Chaudhary informed that Kashmiri migrants are being paid an enhanced cash relief from Rs 1,650 to Rs 2,550 per head from May 1. The ceiling for cash relief per family was enhanced from Rs 6,600 to Rs 10,000. This is being paid to nearly 21,700 of the 62,000 families who have been registered as Kashmiri migrants.

 
The present number of registered Kashmir migrant families which mostly include Kashmiri pandits, Sikhs and some Muslim is 62,000 out of which 40,668 are registered in Jammu, 19,338 in Delhi and 2000 in other parts of the country.

 
The minister also informed the House that a slew of measures have been taken over the years by way of financial assistance. Under the Prime Minister's package of 2004, as many as 5242 two-room tenements have been constructed in Jammu at four locations which have been alloted to the migrants.

 
Further, 200 flats have been constructed inBudgam district in Kashmir Valley which have been allotted on a sharing basis to those migrants who have joined the government services, he said.

 
In 2008, the government announced Rs 1618.40 crore package for return and rehabilitation of the Kashmir migrants and under this scheme 1553 migrants youths have been provided with jobs and one family has availed the benefit of Rs 7.5 lakh for construction of house.

OFFICIALLY STATED
· 2014 WAS RELATIVELY PEACEFUL: MHA REPORT

May 04: The year 2014 was peaceful in comparison to previous years with infiltration showing a steep decline, a report of Ministry of Home Affairs says.

 
The report, accessed by media, states that during the year 2014, infiltration attempts decreased by 19.85 % in comparison to year 2013.

 
“This was because of tightened security vigil on International Border and Line of Control,” the report says, adding that vigil has been further beefed up to stop infiltration.

 
“The forces at IB and LoC have been equipped with sophisticated gadgets to monitor the movement along the border.”

 
“During 2014, the number of infiltration bids came down to 222, the lowest during the last four years,” it said adding that there were 277 infiltration bids in 2013. In 2012 the number of bids was 264 while in 2011 the number was 247.

 
“Militancy in J&K is intrinsically linked with infiltration of militants from across the border both from the IB as well as LoC,” said the report adding that alert forces are taking every measure to stop infiltration.

 
“Less infiltration eases out things for forces in hinterland.”

 
“Central Government in tandem with the State Government has adopted a multi-pronged approach to contain infiltration,” says the report adding that activities on launching pads across the border are also being monitored.

 
About the security situation, the report says although the number of militancy related incidents in 2014 increased, but J&K witnessed significant improvement in overall security situations.

 
“In 2014 security forces were able to kill 110 militants as against 67 in 2013,” it says adding that most of the operations were carried out without causing any collateral damage.

 
“There was about 31% and  87% increase in the number of militancy incidents and casualties of civilians as compared to year 2013”, the MHA report said, adding that militants already operating in the hinterland of the State increased their activities during 2014.

· 19 COMPLAINTS AGAINST ARMY PERSONNEL IN 3 YRS: DEFENCE MINISTRY
May 05: The Defence Ministry Tuesday disclosed that Army headquarters has received 19 cases of alleged human rights violations against soldiers in Jammu and Kashmir during the past three years.

 In a written reply, the Ministry informed the parliament that it has got 19 complaints pertaining to custodial killings, rape, torture and enforced disappearances against Army personnel in the State since 2012.

 
The Ministry revealed that disciplinary action has been taken against 14 Army personnel for Machil fake encounter killings of 2010.

 “Pursuant to newspaper reports about killing of innocent civilians in an operation launched in general area Katwari Forest (Kalaroos-Machhil Sector, J&K) from 30.04.2010 to 02.05.2010, a Court of Inquiry was ordered and subsequently disciplinary actions have been taken against 14 Army personnel,” the reply stated.
· INDIA SHOULD NEUTRALISE TERRORISTS THROUGH TERRORISTS: DEFENCE MINISTER

May 22: Defence minister Manohar Parrikar said on Friday that India has to “neutralise terrorists only through terrorists”, a remark that immediately drew flak from various quarters.

“There are certain things that I obviously cannot discuss here. But if there is any country, why only Pakistan, planning something against my country, we will definitely take some pro-active steps,” he said at an event.

The minister used the Hindi phrase “kante se kanta nikalna” (removing a thorn with a thorn) and wondered why Indian soldiers should be used to “neutralise terrorists”. He said the pro-active steps could include pressure tactics.

When ‘terrorists’ were used against civilians“We have to neutralise terrorists through terrorists only. Why can’t we do it? We should do it. Why does my soldier have to do it?” he said, adding that this issue cannot be discussed beyond this.


He was speaking at ‘Manthan’ conclave organised by news channel Aaj Tak and was replying to a question on what would be the government’s reaction if a repeat of Mumbai attacks or a Parliament attack takes place.

He said the best response would be to ensure it does not happen.

However, in an interview with the Times of India later, Parrikar sought to tone down the statement saying he was in favour of targeted strikes based on intelligence and not covert operations undertaken by civilians or militia.

“Every case is handled firmly with clear-cut intelligence for targeted kills, ensuring minimal if any collateral damage,” Parrikar said in the interview.

He said the army has been given orders to neutralise infiltrators trying to enter India.

“I can only say that anyone trying to infiltrate will be neutralised,” he said.

He also said that a “terrorist who comes with a gun cannot be lectured on human rights.”

However, the Minister added that instructions have been given to take precaution that there is no “collateral damage” and that no Indian soldiers die.

“Take precaution there is no collateral damage. Don’t touch civilians,” he said.

Asked what has changed from the previous government’s tenure, the minister said, “Porosity on borders is less; intelligence has improved”.

Parrikar also said he will stand by the army at any cost if they are right.
· GURU WAS HANGED BY UPA FOR POLITICAL REASONS: OMAR ABDULLAH

May 25: The controversial hanging of Parliament attack convict Afzal Guru had been carried out for “political reasons” by the UPA government which had informed him only hours before, former Chief Minister Omar Abdullah said.

Out for a dinner with his sister at a Delhi restaurant, Omar received a call from the then Home minister Sushilkumar Shinde informing him that he had signed the papers for Guru to be hanged early next morning and asking him to make law and order arrangements.

Even as a last minute effort, Omar said, “I asked the Home minister whether he was sure that nothing can be done. He said no as he had signed the paper and warrant has been issued and asked me to deal with the implications.”

Pointing out that the cases of assassins of Rajiv Gandhi and Beant Singh had been handled differently, he said, “the fact is whether we like it or not he was hanged for political reasons. It’s a fact.”

“I had said I will not pass judgement on it until I see how Government handles other cases… I have seen other cases. Look how they handled assassins of Beant Singh and Rajiv Gandhi and look how they jumped this guy up the queue. Clearly what other conclusion can you arrive at other than this that they wanted to deny BJP another handle to beat them with in the general elections and, therefore, the easiest two people to be hanged were Ajmal Kasab because he was a foreign national and Afzal Guru. Whether I like it or not but they did it,” he said.

Guru, who was at serial number 28 in the list of condemned prisoners, was hanged on February 9, 2013. A controversy broke out as his family got news of his hanging on television. Omar, working President of National Conference which lost power in the December, 2014, elections, termed the Guru issue a “sword of Damocles” hanging over him, saying he had been apprising the Centre from time to time about the implications of Guru’s execution.

“The Afzal Guru execution was something that was discussed all through my tenure. Because we knew it was like a sword of Damocles hanging over us. So from time to time the implications of it were conveyed to the Government of India both to P Chidambaram and to Shinde,” he said.

The implications were always conveyed to the Centre but the concerns multiplied when Kasab, lone survivor of the terrorist team which created mayhem in Mumbai on 26/11, was hanged, he said.

“The general feeling was this that once they have done this, Guru is going to be next and I did place my reservations on record at the time as to what the implications of this would be,” the former Chief Minister said, adding that he was “told that a decision hasn’t been taken but it is being contemplated”.

SUICIDES
· COP ENDS LIFE BY JUMPING INTO CHENAB

May 05: A Jammu and Kashmir Police cop allegedly committed suicide by jumping into river Chenab here this afternoon.   

 
Police identified the deceased as selection grade constable Muhammad Iqbal Tantary (Belt No. 411 R bn) son of Ghulam Rasool of Takiya Thehthar Banihal, presently posted at District Police Lines Ramban.

 
Eyewitness said the cop jumped into river Chenab from Jullah Bridge before his colleagues deployed on guard duty of the bridge could stop him.   

 
Police have registered a case and started investigation to ascertain the reason behind taking the extreme step by the cop.
· ARMY SOLDIER SUICIDES
May 11: An army soldier committed suicide by hanging himself in an army camp in Digiana belt in Jammu. The deceased soldier has been identified as Vale Murgan of Tamil Nadu. 
	DATE 
	TROOPERS
	MILITANTS
	CIVILIANS
	OTHERS

	May 01
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 02
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 03
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 04
	-
	-
	1
	· 

	May 05
	1
	-
	-
	-

	May 06
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 07
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 08
	-
	1
	-
	-

	May 09
	-
	-
	-
	

	May 10
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 11
	3
	-
	-
	-

	May 12
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 13
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 14
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 15
	-
	-
	-
	-


	May 16
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 17
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 18
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 19
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 20
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 21
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 22
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 23
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 24
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 25
	3
	1
	1
	-

	May 26
	-
	-
	1
	-

	May 27
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 28
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 29
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 30 
	-
	-
	-
	-

	May 31
	-
	3
	-
	-

	TOTAL 
	7
	5
	3
	0

	IN TOTO
	14 KILLINGS 


CHRONOLOGY OF INCID ENTS
May 01: No incident of violence reported.
May 02: No incident of violence reported.
May 03: No incident of violence reported.
May 04: Unknown gunmen killed a government employee Abdul Ahad Dar s/o Abdul Gaffar Dar of Astan Mohalla Hazratbal, Srinagar after entering in his house.
May 05: A Jammu and Kashmir Police cop allegedly committed suicide by jumping into river Chenab here this afternoon.   Police identified the deceased as selection grade constable Muhammad Iqbal Tantary (Belt No. 411 R bn) son of Ghulam Rasool of Takiya Thehthar Banihal, presently posted at District Police Lines Ramban
May 06: No incident of violence reported.

May 07: A CRPF trooper was injured in accidental fire at Jammu. The injured was posted at a residence of J&K minister for Information Technology. 
May 08: Army claimed an infiltration bid has been foiled during which an unknown militant was killed in Poonch district of Jammu province.  
May 09: Fourteen civilians were injured in a grenade explosion lobbed by unknown persons in Shopian town of South Kashmir. 
May 10: No incident of violence reported. 
May 11: Two CRPF personnel were killed in a militant attack at Sangam in South Kashmir’s Anantnag district. HM has claimed the responsibility of the attack. In a separate incident, an army soldier committed suicide by hanging himself in a camp in Digiana belt in Jammu. The deceased soldier has been identified as Vale Murgan of Tamil Nadu. 
May 12: No incident of violence reported.
May 13: No incident of violence reported.
May 14: No incident of violence reported.
May 15: No incident of violence reported.
May 16: No incident of violence reported.
May 17: No incident of violence reported.
May 18: No incident of violence reported.
May 19: Two soldiers were injured in a gunfight with militants at Heff Shirmal village in south Kashmir’s Shopian district. 

May 20: No incident of violence reported.
May 21: The state government imposed strict restrictions in Srinagar downtown to foil the pro-freedom gathering at Eidgah, martyr’s graveyard, announced by Hurriyat Conference lead by Mirwaiz Umar Farooq.   
May 22: Protests and clashes between youth and state forces took place at various places in Srinagar down town. 
May 23: No incident of violence reported. 
May 24: Unknown persons hurled a grenade at a residential house in Sopore town in north Kashmir, however, it failed to explode. The grenade was aimed at transmission tower erected in the compound of the house. 
May 25: A group of militants believed to have entered into Kashmir from across the border killed three soldiers and injured a junior commissioned officer in a gunfight in Tanghdar sector of Kupwara district. A militant was also killed in the gun-battle. An army spokesman said that during the gunfight, Lashkar-e-Taiba’s district commander Ayatullah Bhat alias Khomeini son of Hafizullah Bhat was also killed. In a separate incident, an employee of the Bharatiya Sanchar Nigam Limited (BSNL), telecom service provider, was killed and two others sustained injuries when gunmen attacked a BSNL showroom at Sopore in north Kashmir, police said.  The Injured employees Muhammad Rafiq Dar, 25, of Puhroo Handwara, Ghulam Muhammad Bhat, 40, of Sopore, and Imtiyaz Ahmad of Chotipora, Handwara were rushed to a local hospital from where they were referred to Srinagar for specialized treatment . However, Muhammad Rafiq, working as salesman with BSNL, succumbed to his injuries,” a police official said.

May 26: In another attack unidentified gunmen stormed a house with a mobile tower installed in its premises at Dooru, Sopore, and killed its owner. Official sources said the gunmen barged into the house at around 9:25 pm on May 26 and fired indiscriminately at Ghulam Hassan Dar son of Abdul Ahad Dar. Dar, whose son, Tanveer Ahmad, is a Congress sarpanch, was shifted to hospital by the family members but doctors declared him dead on arrival.

May 27: In yet another attack on mobile tower, unknown gunmen attacked a man and injured him as his land houses the mobile tower in Pattan area of Baramulla district. The injured has been identified as Bilal alias Imtiyaz son of Ali Mohammad of Sadha, Mohalla, Pattan, Baramulla. 
May 28: No incident of violence reported. 
May 29: A policeman, guarding a bank, was fired at by unknown gunmen who later decamped with his service rifle in Shopian district. This nature of incident was the third of its kind in last 6 days. In a separate incident, suspected militants hurled two grenade with rifle towards an 22 RR bunker at Gangoo House in Sopore area of district Baramulla.  
May 30: No incident of violence reported.

May 31: Three unidentified militants were killed in Tangdar sector in Kupwara district. 

CASE HIGHLIGHTS


June 11, 2010: Teargas shell hits Tufail, leading to his death on the spot


March 1 2013: Court of PT&E Srinagar accepts closure report by police


July 8, 2013: HC reserves order challenging acceptance of the closure report


February 14, 2014: HC orders fresh probe by Crime Branch


April 1, 2014: CB takes over the investigation


May 6, 2014: CB files closure report as unproved








When we managed the bail from the court and produced the same before Jala. He waste no time to torn the bail papers apart.


We have enough witness accounts to base our belief on that my brother was killed by state backed forces. There was no one except state agencies who can murder him.


His two year detention badly disturbed his educational career. However, he managed to clear his matriculation examination from Khanabal JIC/STF camp.


Again without any reason and rhyme, he was booked under PSA and was imprisoned for one and half-year at Kote Bhalwal jail Jammu.
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